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INTRODUCTION

This report is one of five printed reports presenting the main results from the 2001 Census in Scotland.

The report provides summary statistics for the majority of census questions and topics taking where

appropriate comparable statistics from the previous Census in 1991.  It is published under the authority

of, and to meet the requirements of, Section 4(1) of the Census Act 1920.

2001 Census Reports

There are five printed reports presenting the main results of Scotland’s Census 2001.

Scotland's Census 2001 - 2001 Population Report (GROS 2002, ISBN 1-874451-66-4).

This report gives population by age and sex for Council areas.

The Registrar General’s 2001 Census Report to the Scottish Parliament

(GROS 2003, ISBN 1-874451-70-2).

This is a summary report introducing the Census results – mainly at Scotland level.  It also contains

some brief commentary on the findings.

Key Statistics for Council areas and Health Board areas, Scotland

(GROS 2003, ISBN 1-874451-67-2).

This report provides summary statistics covering the majority of Census topics for Council and

Health Board areas.

Key Statistics for Settlements and Localities, Scotland (GROS 2003, ISBN 1-874451-68-0).

This report provides summary statistics covering the majority of Census topics for Settlements and

Localities.

Scotland’s Census 2001 - Reference Volume (GROS 2003, ISBN 1-874451-69-9).

This report contains, for Scotland level only, the detailed statistical tables produced for the Census.

It is useful as a guide to the many tables that are only available electronically.  Comparable tables

are available electronically for Council areas, Health Board areas, and a range of other areas.

Information in this report

This report, The Registrar General’s 2001 Census Report to the Scottish Parliament, is intended as a

brief introduction to the wealth of statistics that are produced in a variety of formats and delivered in a

variety of media for a variety of geographical areas.  The report has also been made available on the

GROS website at www.gro-scotland.gov.uk.
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This report contains 24 tables, each giving information for Scotland.  Some tables provide statistics for

the 32 Council areas in Scotland.  Table titles are listed on the contents page.

The results in this report are a combination of counts and (displayed in italics in the tables) percentages.

The tables in this report form only a small subset of the results to be made available from the 2001

Census. Information on further results and the different methods of accessing the results are provided in

the Further Information section on page 3.  More detailed information on the terms used in tables;

comparability with 1991; the Census questions; and response and imputation rates is available as part of

the Supporting Information for the Census Results. This can be found in the electronic document

'Scotland's Census - A guide to the results and how to obtain them' on the Census pages of the GROS

website (www.gro-scotland.gov.uk) or by contacting GROS Customer Services.

Comparisons with the 1991 Census

The 2001 Census results have been adjusted to take account of estimated undercoverage in the Census

based on the One Number Census methodology, which used the results of the Census Coverage Survey

(see page 7 for more detail on the One Number Census).  Figures re-aggregated from the 1991 Census

were not similarly adjusted for under-enumeration.  However the bias in the 1991 figures caused by

unadjusted underenumeration should not materially affect the percentage distributions presented in this

report.
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FURTHER INFORMATION

More detailed statistics covering the full range of topics from the 2001 Census in Scotland for a variety of

geographical areas will be available by March 2003.  Descriptions of the products and how they will be

delivered are available in the Supporting Information section of the electronic document  ‘Scotland’s

Census – A guide to the results and how to obtain them’, which is available on the Census pages of the

GROS website (www.gro-scotland.gov.uk).

SCROL (Scotland’s Census Results On Line)

SCROL, accessible at www.scrol.gov.uk, from March 2003 will progressively provide free on line

access to all of the detailed results from the 2001 Census in Scotland.

In addition to the website, a series of CD-ROMs has also been developed.  These provide access to a

wider range of data than the SCROL website, along with more functionality for analysing the results.

Contacts

Further information about the Census products, or assistance in finding the appropriate data or requests

for additional data not part of the Census products can be obtained from GROS Customer Services.

Customer Services
Demography and Dissemination Branch
General Register Office for Scotland
Ladywell House
Ladywell Road
EDINBURGH
EH12 7TF

Tel:   0131 314 4254
Fax:  0131 314 4696
International: Tel: +44 131 314 4254

Fax: +44 131 314 4696

E-mail:  customer@gro-scotland.gsi.gov.uk
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Separate Censuses were carried out, on the same day and using similar methodologies, in England and
Wales, and Northern Ireland.  Information on these Censuses is available from:

England and Wales

Census Customer Services
Office for National Statistics
Segensworth Road
Titchfield
Fareham
Hants
PO15 5RR
Tel:  01329 913800
Fax:  01329 813587
International: Tel: +44 1329 813800

Fax: +44 1329 813587
E-mail:  census.customerservices@ons.gov.uk
Website:  www.statistics.gov.uk

Northern Ireland

Census Customer Services
Northern Ireland Statistics and
    Research Agency
McAuley House
2-14 Castle Street
Belfast
BT1 1SA
Tel:  (028) 9034 8160
Fax:  (028) 9034 8161
International: Tel: +44 28 9034 8160

Fax: +44 28 9034 8161
E-mail:  census.nisra@dfpni.gov.uk
Website:  www.nisra.gov.uk

Where results for England and Wales and Northern Ireland have been published in a similar format to the

tables in this report, aggregated tables providing results for the UK are available from any of the three

UK Census Offices listed above.

Copyright and licensing

This publication (excluding the Royal Arms and departmental logo) may be reproduced free of charge in

any format or medium for research, private study or for internal circulation within an organisation.  This

is subject to it being reproduced accurately and not used in a misleading context.  The material must be

acknowledged as Crown copyright and the title of the publication specified.

This publication can also be accessed at the GROS website (www.gro-scotland.gov.uk). For any other use

of this material please apply for a Click-Use Licence on the HMSO website at www.hmso.gov.uk/click-

use-home.htm, or by writing to HMSO at:

The Licensing Division
St Clements House
2-16 Colegate
Norwich
NR3 1BQ

Fax:  01603 723000

E-mail:  hmsolicensing@cabinet-office.x.gsi.gov.uk
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2001 CENSUS BACKGROUND

Consultation

Potential users of the results from 2001 Census have been consulted since 1996, when plans for the first

tests of procedures and questions were being planned.  A White Paper ‘The 2001 Census of Population’

published in March 1999 set out the (pre-devolution) UK government's plans for the 2001 Census.

Further major consultations involving Roadshows and consultation papers took place in spring 1999 and

autumn 2001 to identify user needs and to assist the design of the results to be produced from the

collected data.

Legislation

The 1920 Census Act allows for the carrying out of a Census no sooner than five years after the previous

Census.  However, various other legislative requirements need to be fulfilled before a Census can be held.

In the period up to publication of the White Paper, the Census Offices and users had been refining both

the business cases for each Census topic and the wording of the question (or questions) to be asked in

order to obtain the required information.  Prior to every Census, a Census Order is required.  This states

the date of the Census, the people who are required to complete the form, those who are to be included on

the form and the topics on which questions will be asked.  The operational aspects of the Census also

require legislative approval.  This information is set out in Census Regulations, which contain details of

how the Census is to be conducted.  The Regulations include a copy of the Census form. The decision to

include a question on religion in the 2001 Census, resulted in additional legislation, with the 1920 Census

Act, Census Order 2000 and Census Regulations 2000 all requiring amendment to make provision for

religion information to be asked.

Fieldwork

The Census was designed to collect information on the resident population on Census Day – 29 April

2001.  Ahead of this day, enumerators delivered Census forms to every identified household space and

communal establishment.  Residents were asked to complete the forms with the information as correct on

Census Day, and to return the completed forms by post.  If a completed form was not received back, an

enumerator visited the address in order to collect the form by hand or to issue a reminder to post back.

Special arrangements were made to enumerate the Armed Forces and people sleeping rough.  The overall

response rate (that is, the proportion of people included on a returned Census form) is estimated as 96 per

cent.

The Census was followed by the Census Coverage Survey (CCS), which took place between 24 May and

18 June 2001.  This was an interview survey of some 36,000 households and 92 communal
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establishments in Scotland.  Comparison of the results of the CCS with the Census was used to adjust the

Census counts for under-enumeration (see the One Number Census paragraphs).  The CCS achieved a

household response rate (the proportion of identified households, which were successfully interviewed)

of 95 per cent.

Census content

The results are based on the information collected from the Census forms.  Copies of the Census forms

used are contained in the 2001 Census Definitions Volume or available on the Census pages of the GROS

website (www.gro-scotland.gov.uk).  All questions included in the 1991 Census were included in the

2001 Census with the exception of questions relating to usual address and whereabouts on Census night

(see Populations covered in this report in the Definitions section on page 10). However, the answer

categories in some questions, such as ethnic group were updated.  There were also new questions on

general health, the provision of unpaid care, time since last paid employment, the size of work force at

place of work, supervision of employees and two voluntary questions on religion.

The Census questions asked of all people covered:

� sex, age (date of birth) and marital status

� relationship to others in the household (where applicable)

� whether schoolchild/student

� whether term-time address

� country of birth

� ethnic group

� religion - current and upbringing

� health

� limiting long-term illness

� provision of unpaid care

� address one year ago

� address of place of work or study

� means of travel to work or study

� knowledge of Gaelic
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whilst questions for those aged 16 to 74 covered:

� qualifications

� economic activity and employment status

� number of employees at place of work

� year since last employed

� occupation and industry of employment

� hours worked

in addition, the person filling in the form in each household was asked about:

� type of accommodation and whether self-contained

� number of rooms

� availability of bath/shower and toilet

� lowest floor level

� presence of central heating

� availability of cars or vans

� tenure

� landlord

� whether or not accommodation was rented as furnished

Processing

Returned forms were fed through scanning machinery, which captured all the ticked responses, and stored

most written answers in digital form.  The latter were coded into categories either by automatic systems,

which recognise terms given in response to questions, or by manual coding.  This data was then edited to

ensure that the data was consistent, and was followed by an imputation process to supply responses for

questions, which had not been completed on the original form.

One Number Census

Following the 1991 Census, it was acknowledged that the Census suffered from a degree of undercount,

the extent and nature of which was not identified by the 1991 Census Validation Survey.  As a result the

detailed 1991 Census tables were not consistent with the final estimate of 1991 Census Day population.
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To avoid a similar situation following the 2001 Census, the Census Coverage Survey (CCS) and the One

Number Census (ONC) projects were initiated.

The 2001 CCS was an intensive enumeration of a representative sample of postcodes in Scotland and was

designed to be independent of the Census and provide the ONC Project with the required data to estimate

underenumeration.  The ONC Project derives its name from the intention to eliminate different

population counts so that all Census outputs add to one number – the national population estimate that

has been adjusted for undercounting.  The ONC Project ensured that the most appropriate estimation

procedures were used to calculate the final Census data.

More detail on the conduct of the One Number Census is available on the Census pages of the GROS

website (www.gro-scotland.gov.uk).

Comparability with the 1991 Census

Given the approach taken to estimating underenumeration in the 2001 Census, a comparison of

percentage distributions will give a more useful comparison than a comparison of counts.  It is

comparisons of percentage distributions that are contained in this report.

A comparison of the coverage achieved in the 1991 and 2001 Censuses is presented in the table below.

Comparison of Census coverage in the 1991 and 2001 Censuses percentage
1991 2001

Enumerated in the Census 96.9 96.1
People identified as missing and included in Census results 1.2 3.9
Census coverage of the population 98.1 100
Missing but not included in Census results 1.9 0
Total 100 100

The level of actual census enumeration was similar in 1991 and 2001, 96.9 per cent compared with 96.1

per cent, respectively.  But, as the table shows, the 2001 Census results cover the whole population

compared with 98.1 per cent coverage in the 1991 Census.  The difference in coverage lies in the

approach to estimating under-enumeration in the two Censuses.

In 1991, the Census method allowed enumerators to identify many occupied households where the people

within them had not returned a form and include an allowance for them in the Census tables. This gave an

overall coverage of 98.1 per cent.   The method did not enable enumerators to identify people missed

from households where a form was returned, nor to make an allowance for any occupied households that

they failed to locate.  Using data from administrative sources and the 1991 Census Validation Survey it

was estimated that these people accounted for about 1.9 per cent of the population.  These were not added

to the Census tables.
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In the 2001 Census, the One Number Census methodology allowed for both types of missing people to be

adjusted for in the Census tables.

Quality of the Results

The use of the One Number Census methodology means that the results of the 2001 Census cover the

entire population of Scotland, and are believed to be the most reliable results obtained by any Census in

Scotland.  However, there are a number of sources of potential error in the results. These include

� Incorrect or incomplete information provided on the forms.

� Sampling error related to estimates derived through the One Number Census process.

� Unidentified dependencies between the Census and the Census Coverage Survey.

� Errors introduced during processing and imputation.

Some elements of incorrect information will have been corrected during the edit process (see Processing

above).  Other biases will have been corrected by the One Number Census process.  Following this, the

results have undergone an extensive quality assurance process, including checks against aggregated

administrative information on particular groups such as students and the Armed Forces.  Elements of

dependency between the Census and Census Coverage Survey have been identified and corrected for, by

cross-checking with alternative data sources.

Since the adjustments for under-enumeration through the One Number Census methodology are estimates

based on a sample survey, sampling errors can be used as a guide in assessing the accuracy of the

adjustments.  The sampling error can be used to construct a 95 per cent confidence interval - that is a

range in which we can be 95 per cent confident that the true value lies.  For the population of Scotland,

this confidence interval is ± 0.3 per cent of the estimated population.

Confidentiality

The Registrar General has a legal obligation not to reveal information collected in confidence in the

Census about individual people and households.  Protecting the Census data is of key importance and

steps have been taken to safeguard confidentiality and protect against disclosure of personal information

provided on the Census form.  Further information is given in ‘Scotland’s Census – A guide to the results

and how to obtain them’, which is available on the Census pages of the GROS website (www.gro-

scotland.gov.uk) or by contacting GROS Customer Services.
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DEFINITIONS

Populations covered in this report

Each table in this report relates to one or more populations, where population is used in the statistical

sense of an item being counted.  Many tables relate to the population 'All people', but other tables relate

to subsets of 'All people', such as 'People in employment aged 16 to 74', or to distinct populations such as

'All households'.

People

In the 2001 Census information was collected only on usual residents (this contrasts to the 1991 Census

which collected information on both usual residents and visitors on Census night).  A usual resident at an

address is generally defined as someone who spends most of their time residing at that address.  It

includes:

� People who usually live at the address but are temporarily away from home (on holiday, visiting

friends or relatives or temporarily in a hospital or similar establishment) on Census Day.

� A spouse or partner who works away from home for part of the time, or is a member of the

Armed Forces.

� Students at their term-time address.

� A baby born before 30th April 2001 even if he or she is still in hospital.

� People present on Census Day, even if temporarily, who have no other usual address.

However, it does not include:

� Anyone present on Census Day who has another usual address.

� Anyone who has been living, or will live, in a special establishment such as a residential home,

nursing home or hospital for six months or more.

Households

A household comprises one person living alone, or a group of people (not necessarily related) living at

the same address with common housekeeping - that is, sharing either a living room or sitting room or at

least one meal a day.

More information on the definition of table populations can be found in the 2001 Census Definitions

Volume due to be published by the Office for National Statistics in March 2003 or from the Census

Supporting Information which can be accessed via the electronic document 'Scotland's Census - A Guide

to the results and how to obtain them' on the Census pages of the GROS website

(www.gro-scotland.gov.uk) or by contacting GROS Customer Services.
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COMMENTARY

Demography

Age and sex (Table 1) An ageing population

Of the 5,062,011 residents in Scotland on Census Day (29 April 2001), some 36 per cent were aged under

30. The corresponding figure from the previous Census in 1991 was 41 per cent.  Conversely, the older

age groups all increased as a proportion of the whole population (with the exception of the small

60-64 age group, who comprised 5 per cent of the population in both Censuses).

Males accounted for 48 per cent of the population in 2001.  This proportion varied from 51 per cent of

the 0 to 15 age group to 40 per cent of those aged 65 and over.  More information about the basic

demographic composition of the population of Scotland on both Census Day and at mid-year

(30 June 2001) was given in Scotland’s Census 2001 - 2001 Population Report, (GROS,

ISBN 1-874451-66-4, £5).  This included a breakdown by Council area.  Figures for each Scottish

Parliamentary Constituency are given in the Appendix to this report.

Marital status (Table 2) Fewer married people

People who were recorded, as single (i.e. had never married) in the 2001 Census represented 31 per cent

of the total population.  This was an increase from 1991 when the corresponding figure was 27 per cent.

Divorcees were another group to increase in relative terms (from 5 per cent in 1991 to 7 per cent). There

were falls in the proportions of people who were widowed (from 10 per cent to 9 per cent) and married,

including re-married and separated, (from 58 per cent to 54 per cent).

Males were more likely than females to be single or married, while females were more likely to be

divorced or widowed.

Households and families

Household type (Table 3) Households are getting smaller

There were 2,192,246 households in the 2001 Census containing 4,976,005 residents – an average

household size of 2.27.  The corresponding figure from 1991 was 2.44.  The decrease in average

household size is reflected in the changes in the proportion of types of household.

There were decreases in the proportions of persons living in household types Large family (from 18 per

cent in 1991 to 15 per cent in 2001), Large adult (19 per cent to 17 per cent) and Small family (from

22 per cent to 21 per cent).  Conversely, there were increases in the proportions of persons – and

households - in types Single adult (persons increased from 5 per cent to 8 per cent), Single parent (from

5 per cent to 6 per cent) and Small adult (from 14 per cent to 15 per cent).  There were also increases in

the proportion of persons in Single pensioner households (from 6 per cent to 7 per cent).  The proportion
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of households in this category did not show an increase because the total number of households increased

relatively more than the total number of residents.

The proportion of households with children (Single parent, Large family and Small family) decreased

from 28 per cent in 1991 to 26 per cent in 2001.

Family type (Table 4) Less than half of families headed by a married couple

The number of families in households identified in the 2001 Census was 2,352,535.  The average size of

family was 2.12 persons.  The corresponding figure from 1991 was 2.26.

Married couple families represented 42.5 per cent of all families.  This contrasted with 1991 when over

half of all families were married couples. Each category of married couple family (classified by number

of dependent children) fell broadly in proportion with the general fall – with couples with no dependent

children in the household remaining the most common, followed by couples with 2 dependent children.

Cohabiting couple families doubled in relative terms from 1991 (3.5 per cent) to 2001 (6.9 per cent).  The

proportions in each category based on number of dependent children increased with the general increase,

with couples with no dependent children in the household the most common and, unlike married couples,

couples with one dependent child next most common.

The proportion of families headed by a lone father (1.4 per cent in 2001) was slightly down from 1991,

but of these the proportion with dependent children rose.  The proportion of lone mother families rose

overall (from 8.8 per cent to 9.6 per cent), with increases in the proportion of those with dependent

children more than compensating for the decrease in the proportion with no dependent children.

Taking all these families together, it can be seen that dependent children were more likely to be in lone

parent or cohabiting couple families in 2001 than in 1991.

Housing

Accommodation type (Table 5) Houses and bungalows more prevalent

In almost two-thirds (64 per cent) of cases in 2001, a household occupied a whole house or bungalow.

Council areas with particularly high proportions of such households were Aberdeenshire (87 per cent),

Eilean Siar (93 per cent), Highland (87 per cent), Orkney Islands (92 per cent) and Shetland Islands

(90 per cent).  High proportions of households in flats were found in Aberdeen City (50 per cent),

Dundee City (52 per cent), the City of Edinburgh (59 per cent) and Glasgow City (70 per cent).

The proportion of households occupying whole houses or bungalows increased from 61 per cent in 1991

to 64 per cent in 2001.  Increases were particularly noticeable in West Dunbartonshire (up 7 percentage

points), Renfrewshire, Glasgow City, Inverclyde, Dundee City (all 6 points higher), and North

Lanarkshire (5 points higher).
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Tenure (Table 6) Large increase in owner occupation

The proportion of households owning their accommodation rose from 52 to 63 per cent between 1991 and

2001.  There was also an increase in the proportion renting from the private sector (7 per cent to 10 per

cent) and a corresponding decrease in the proportion in the social rented sector (i.e. renting from the

Council, Scottish Homes, a housing association, housing co-operative, charitable trust or non-profit

housing company). The increase in home ownership was fairly general across all Council areas although

the proportions varied considerably from over 80 per cent in East Dunbartonshire and East Renfrewshire

to below 50 per cent in Glasgow City.

The Council areas with the highest proportion in the social rented sector were Glasgow City and North

Lanarkshire with over 35 per cent.  The areas with the largest proportions of households in the private

rented sector were fairly diverse with Dumfries & Galloway, Dundee City, the City of Edinburgh, Moray,

Perth & Kinross and Scottish Borders all having 15 per cent in this category.

Cultural attributes

Ethnic group (Table 7) More non-Whites than in 1991

Some 2 per cent of the population of Scotland in 2001 were from a minority (non-White) ethnic group,

compared with 1.3 per cent in 1991.  After the White ethnic group, the largest numbers of people were in

the Pakistani, Chinese, and Indian ethnic groups.  The table below shows the detailed changes between

1991 and 2001 for broadly comparable groupings of the different classifications used in either Census.

2001 1991

All persons (100 per cent) 100.00              100.00              

White 97.99              98.75              
Indian 0.30              0.20              
Pakistani 0.63              0.42              
Bangladeshi 0.04              0.02              
Other South Asian 0.12              0.09              
Chinese 0.32              0.21              
Caribbean 0.04              0.02              
African 0.10              0.06              
Black Scottish or Other Black 0.02              0.05              
Other 0.44              0.18              

The proportion of the population in each of the non-White groups increased, apart from in Black Scottish

or Other Black, where the inclusion of a tick box for Mixed background on the 2001 Census form may

have affected response.



16 General Register Office for Scotland, ���� Crown copyright 2003

The fall in the proportion of the White population was particularly marked in the younger age groups (for

example the percentage of 16 to 29 year olds who were White fell from 98.4 to 96.8 per cent).  The rise in

the proportion of 0-15 year olds was particularly marked in the ‘Other’ group.

Country of birth (Table 8) More English-born in Scotland

Roughly an eighth of the population of Scotland in 2001 (12.9 per cent) were born elsewhere, an increase

from 10.9 per cent in 1991.  By far the largest proportion of those born outwith Scotland were born in

England.

As might be expected, the proportion of people born in Scotland was highest in the youngest age group.

Among other age groups, the proportion born in Scotland was highest in the older population.  The

proportions of people born in Scotland in the age groups from 16 to 59 were relatively low.  This reflects

the numbers of people born in Northern Ireland and Other European Union countries in the 16 to 29 age

group, and people born Elsewhere both in this age group and in the 30 to 44 age group.

Religion (Table 9) Census data on religion for the first time

The 2001 Census contained for the first time two questions on religion relating to religion of upbringing

and current religion.  For religion of upbringing, by far the largest category was the Church of Scotland

(47.3 per cent) followed by None (17.5 per cent) and Roman Catholic (17.0 per cent) – see table below.

The largest of the non-Christian groups was the Muslim group with 0.8 per cent.

% of all persons in each 
category: religion of 

upbringing

% of all persons in each 
category: current religion

% of those with  religion of 
upbringing whose current 

religion same

% of those with  current 
religion whose religion of 

upbringing same

All persons 100.0              100.0              81.2              81.2              

None 17.5              27.5              91.7              58.4              
Church of Scotland 47.3              42.4              82.3              91.7              
Roman Catholic 17.0              15.9              86.4              92.4              
Other Christian 8.4              6.8              62.6              77.1              
Buddhist 0.1              0.1              66.9              46.1              
Hindu 0.1              0.1              88.4              94.1              
Jewish 0.1              0.1              76.0              87.8              
Muslim 0.8              0.8              95.6              95.0              
Sikh 0.1              0.1              87.2              90.6              
Another Religion 0.2              0.5              63.1              19.8              
Not Answered 8.4              5.5              59.6              90.6              

A similar pattern is revealed for current religion, although the proportions of people adhering to the

Church of Scotland (42.4 per cent) and Roman Catholic (15.9 per cent) were less than the equivalent

proportions for religion of upbringing.  The proportion of people recording None as their current religion

at 27.5 per cent was greater than the corresponding proportion for religion of upbringing.

The above table also shows that the groups with the highest proportion of those brought up in the religion

who are current adherents were Muslim (96 per cent), and, disregarding the None group, Hindu (88 per

cent), Sikh (87 per cent) and Roman Catholic (86 per cent).  The groups with the lowest proportion of
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current adherents who were brought up in the same religion, again disregarding None, were Another

religion (20 per cent), Buddhist (46 per cent) and Other Christian (77 per cent).

Gaelic (Table 10) Fewer Gaelic speakers

The number of persons aged 3 or over who spoke Gaelic in 2001 was 58,652, compared with 65,978 in

1991, a fall of 11 per cent.  The corresponding figures for those who could speak, read or write were

65,674 in 2001 and 69,510 in 1991, a fall of 6 per cent.  The number who could speak, read, write or

understand Gaelic in 2001 was 92,396.

For Scotland as a whole the proportion of persons aged 3 or over speaking Gaelic was 1.2 per cent (a fall

from 1.4 per cent in 1991).  The Council areas with the highest proportions speaking Gaelic were Eilean

Siar (61.1 per cent), Highland (6.3 per cent) and Argyll & Bute (4.7 per cent).

Illness and health

Long-term illness (Table 11) Large increase in recorded long-term illness

20 per cent of the population indicated that they had a long-term illness, health problem or disability that

limited their daily activities or the work they could do in 2001.  This was an increase over 1991 when

14 per cent reported such an illness.  The proportion varied among Council areas with Glasgow City

(26 per cent in 2001) and North Lanarkshire (23 per cent) highest, and Aberdeenshire (15 per cent), East

Renfrewshire (16 per cent) and Shetland Islands (16 per cent) lowest.  Allowing for the general increase

in reporting such illness across Scotland from 1991 to 2001, the distribution among Council areas

changed relatively little.

General health (Tables 11 and 12) More poor health in social rented and rent free sectors

A new question in the 2001 Census asked about each person’s general health over the twelve months

before the Census.  Around two-thirds reported that their health had been ‘good’, just over a fifth said it

had been ‘fairly good’ with a tenth in the remaining category ‘not good’.

As might be expected there was a strong relationship between the responses to the question on health and

that on long-term illness.  Only 15 per cent of those with a long-term illness said their health had been

‘good’ compared with 81 per cent of those with no long-term illness.  Conversely, 44 per cent of those

with a long-term illness said their health had been ‘not good’, while for those with no long-term illness

the figure was 1 per cent.

This relationship was fairly uniform across Council areas except in the two areas (Glasgow City and

North Lanarkshire) reporting high levels of long-term illness. Those two areas showed the lowest rates of

reporting health as ‘good’ among those with a long-term illness – and Glasgow City reported the lowest

rate among those with no long-term illness.
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When the response to the question on health is analysed by the tenure of household, high proportions of

reporting of health ‘not good’ were found in the social rented sector and in households living rent free

(both 18 per cent compared with 10 per cent for all persons in households).   Low proportions of health

‘not good’ were seen in households buying their accommodation with a mortgage or loan (5 per cent).

Economic activity

Sex (Table 13) Fewer men in full-time employment

Questions on economic activity were asked only of persons aged 16 to 74 in 2001.  Of these, around

two-thirds (65 per cent) were economically active in that they were working or were unemployed.  This

represented a slight drop of 1 per cent from 1991.  Within this fairly static picture there were falls in the

proportions of full-time employees (42 per cent in 1991 to 40 per cent in 2001), and persons unemployed

(8 per cent to 4 per cent).  There were increases in the proportions who were part-time employees (10 per

cent in 1991 and 11 per cent in 2001), those self-employed (rising from 6 per cent to 7 per cent) and in

economically active full-time students (1 per cent to 3 per cent).

Amongst persons who were not economically active, the largest group in 2001 was those retired (14 per

cent), then those who were permanently sick or disabled (7 per cent).  Both these proportions were much

as in 1991, as was the proportion of economically inactive students (4 per cent).  The main difference

between 1991 and 2001 in those economically inactive was the fall in the proportion of those reported as

looking after the home or family - down from 12 per cent to 6 per cent.

While for both males and females the proportion of part-time employees rose between 1991 and 2001,

around seven-eighths of this type of employee were female.  The fall in the proportion of those aged 16 to

74 who are full-time employees was predominantly due to the fall in males who are so employed (from

55 per cent to 51 per cent).

Females predominated in the category of ‘looking after the home or family’.  The fall mentioned above in

this category for males and females combined was explained by the fall observed for females (from

22 per cent to 10 per cent).

Council area (Table 14) Glasgow City has most unemployed and inactive

The Council areas where the self-employed constituted the highest proportions of those who are working

tend to be rural: Orkney Islands (25 per cent), Argyll & Bute (19 per cent) and Scottish Borders (18 per

cent).  The picture was very similar in 1991.

Relatively high numbers of unemployed persons as a proportion of those economically active were found

in Glasgow City (10 per cent) and Dundee City, East Ayrshire, North Ayrshire and West Dunbartonshire

(all 9 per cent).  The lowest rate of unemployment was in Shetland Islands (3 per cent).  All Council areas

showed falls in the percentage unemployed from 1991.
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Council areas with a high rate of unemployment tended also to have a relatively high proportion of

persons aged 16 to 74 who were economically inactive.  Glasgow City (with 44 per cent) had the highest

percentage of economically inactive.

Providing Care (Table 15) One in ten a carer

The 2001 Census had a new question on the time spent by a person providing care, that is unpaid help to

a family member, friend or neighbour because of long-term physical or mental ill-health or disability

(including problems related to old age).  Nine-tenths of the population reported that they provided no

care, while 6.0 per cent reported they provided such help for up to 19 hours a week, 1.2 per cent provided

20 to 49 hours a week, and 2.3 per cent provided at least 50 hours a week.

Whether or not a person provided care and, if so, the amount of time spent so doing, was related to a

person’s economic activity status.  Around a seventh of those in part-time employment were carers (a

higher proportion than for all persons).  A similar proportion of those economically inactive were carers,

but a relatively high proportion of them (5.4 per cent) spent at least 50 hours a week in this activity.  The

proportion of those aged over 74 who were carers was relatively low (at 6.0 per cent) but around a half of

them were carers for at least 50 hours a week.

National Statistics – Socio-economic Classification (NS-SeC) (Table 16)

New classification has replaced Social Class by Occupation

The new National Statistics – Socio-economic Classification (NS-SeC) replaces the former classification

- the Registrar General’s Social Class by Occupation. Of those in employment in 2001, the largest NS-

SeC group was that of ‘Lower managerial and professional occupations’ representing a quarter of

workers.  This group has grown since 1991 when it was a fifth of workers; the growth is largely

attributable to a growth in the number of females.  Those with semi-routine occupations formed the next

largest group with 16 per cent of workers – little changed from 1991.  Around three-fifths of this group

were female in 2001.  The next largest groups in 2001, Intermediate occupations (with 13 per cent) and

Routine occupations (12 per cent), both fell as proportions of all workers compared with 1991.  The first

of these was largely female in 2001 (72 per cent of the group) the second largely male (64 per cent).

Males tended to be spread out across all groups more than females.  In particular they were relatively

highly represented in the groups Large employers and higher managerial and professional occupations

and Higher professional occupations.  Both of these groups increased as proportions of the number of

workers from 1991 to 2001.

Industry (Table 17) Over a fifth of working women employed in Health and Social Work

The largest industry group in 2001 was ‘Wholesale and retail trade; Repair of Motor Vehicles’ with

14.4 per cent of those working – little changed from 1991.  Manufacturing (at 13.2 per cent of workers)
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had fallen from being the largest group in 1991 (with 18.2 per cent).  Of workers in Manufacturing,

70 per cent were males.  Health and Social Work increased its share of the workforce slightly (from

10.9 per cent to 12.4 per cent), and contained 21.4 per cent of female workers, more than any other

industry group.  At 11.2 per cent of workers, the next largest group in 2001, Real estate; Renting and

Business Activities, showed a large increase from 1991 when it had 6.9 per cent of workers.

Other groups were either relatively small or were relatively unchanged from 1991.  Of these, industries

with mostly female workers were Education (7.3 per cent of workers in 2001), Hotels and Restaurants

(5.7 per cent), and Financial Intermediation (4.6 per cent).  Predominantly male groups were Transport,

Storage and Communication (6.7 per cent of workers in 2001), Construction (7.5 per cent), Agriculture;

Hunting; Forestry (2.1 per cent), Mining and Quarrying (0.3 per cent), and Fishing (0.3 per cent).

Tenure by Economic Activity (Table 18) Unemployment higher in social rented and rent free sectors

The 2001 Census shows that there is a relationship between household tenure and economic activity,

particularly self-employment, unemployment and economic inactivity.  Looking at each tenure group, the

highest proportions of self-employed (around a fifth of workers) were found in households owning their

accommodation outright and those renting unfurnished in the private sector.  Unemployment was

relatively high (around a sixth of those economically active) in households in the social rented sector and

those living rent free. Economic inactivity was high (over a half of all persons) in the same tenure

categories and also in households owning their accommodation outright. A relatively low rate of

unemployment (3 per cent) was seen in the owned sector generally.  Economic inactivity was particularly

low (18 per cent) in households buying their accommodation with a mortgage or loan.

Ethnic group by Economic Activity (Table 19) Asians more likely to be self-employed

Self-employment was relatively high among ethnic groups with origins in Asia: Pakistani (36 per cent),

Chinese (26 per cent), Indian (24 per cent), Bangladeshi (23 per cent) and Other South Asian (21 per

cent).  Unemployment was at or around the average for all groups (6 per cent) for the White groups and

Indian and Chinese, while other groups had higher unemployment rates (from 9 per cent to 12 per cent).

Economic inactivity was highest among the Pakistani and Other South Asian population (49 per cent for

both).

Religion by Economic Activity  (Table 20) Muslims more likely to be unemployed

Around a third of workers who were Sikh, Muslim or Jewish were self-employed in 2001 as were a

quarter of Buddhist workers.  This compares with 11 per cent of the population aged 16 to 74 as a whole.

One in ten Muslims who were economically active was unemployed, compared with 6 per cent of the

population as a whole.  Economic inactivity was relatively high among Buddhists and Muslims.
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Travel

Cars and vans (Table 21) More households with cars

About a third (34 per cent) of households were without a car or van in 2001.  This was a fall from over

two-fifths (43 per cent) in 1991.  That the availability of cars increased from 1991 is also borne out by the

fact that the percentage of households with two or more cars increased from 16 per cent to 22 per cent,

while the proportion with one car also increased from 41 per cent to 43 per cent. The average number of

cars per household increased from 0.76 in 1991 to 0.93 in 2001.

The Council areas with the highest proportions of households without a car or van were Glasgow City

(56 per cent), Dundee City (46 per cent), Inverclyde and West Dunbartonshire (both 43 per cent).  The

lowest proportions were in Aberdeenshire (18 per cent) and East Renfrewshire (20 per cent).

Travel to work (Table 22) More go to work by car

In the 2001 Census the 1991 questions on destination and means of travel to work were extended to cover

travel to either work or study.  Those whose destination of travel was deemed to be their workplace were

workers who were not full-time students.  Most of this group in 2001 (64 per cent) travelled to work by

Car or motorcycle.  The corresponding figure for 1991 was 56 per cent - representing an increase of

8 percentage points.  This increase was at the expense of travel by Bus etc, which fell from 16 per cent in

1991 to 13 per cent, and Other means of transport (chiefly on foot or bicycle), which fell from 20 per cent

to 14 per cent.  The proportion of people working at home increased slightly from 5 per cent to 6 per cent.

Council areas with the largest proportions of workers travelling by Train or underground were Glasgow

City and West Dunbartonshire (with 9 per cent compared with 3 per cent for Scotland as a whole).

Travelling to work by Bus etc was most common in the City of Edinburgh (26 per cent) and Glasgow

City (24 per cent).  Travelling by Other means was most common in Moray and Argyll & Bute (both

23 per cent).  Working at home was most prevalent in rural areas such as Orkney Islands (15 per cent),

Dumfries & Galloway (11 per cent) and Argyll & Bute, Eilean Siar, Highland, and Scottish Borders (all

10 per cent).

Travel to study (Table 23) Many students still walk or cycle

Half of students and school-children travelled to their place of study by Other means i.e. chiefly by foot

or bicycle.   Almost a quarter fell into each of the categories Bus etc and Car or motorcycle.  The

remainder (3 per cent) travelled by Train or underground.  Council areas with the highest proportions

travelling to study by Train or underground were West Dunbartonshire (9 per cent) and East

Renfrewshire (8 per cent).  The latter was also the area with the highest proportion travelling by Car or

motorcycle (31 per cent).  Areas with the highest proportions travelling by Bus etc were the 3 islands

areas: Eilean Siar (50 per cent), Shetland Islands (39 per cent) and Orkney Islands (38 per cent).
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Travellers to study by Other means were relatively common in Aberdeen City (53 per cent), Dundee City

(51 per cent) and East Lothian, the City of Edinburgh and Midlothian (all 50 per cent).

Educational Qualifications

Highest level obtained (Table 24) A third have no educational qualifications

The 2001 Census asked form-fillers to tick as many of eight boxes that applied to indicate the type of

qualifications obtained by those aged 16 to 74.  The previous Census sought information about each

degree, professional or vocational qualification (if any) held by persons aged 18 or over.

In 2001, the responses were used to assign each person to his or her highest level of qualification. A third

of persons aged 16 to 74 had no qualifications recorded in the categories listed against the tick boxes on

the form.  There were a quarter whose highest qualification was at group 1, 16 per cent at group 2, 7 per

cent at group 3 and 19 per cent at group 4 (degree or professional qualifications).  Groups 3 and 4 roughly

cover the same range of qualifications as in the 1991 question and just over a quarter (26 per cent) of

persons aged 16 to 74 were in this category.  The corresponding percentage in 1991 was 14 per cent,

although it would be difficult to place a high degree of confidence in this comparison because of

differences in the way the data were collected and in the age range covered.

The Council areas with the highest proportions of people with none of the listed qualifications were East

Ayrshire and Glasgow City (both with 41 per cent). Those with most at level 4 were the City of

Edinburgh (32 per cent) and East Dunbartonshire and East Renfrewshire (both with 29 per cent).
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